Bishampton & Throckmorton Parish Council

Minutes of the Parish Council Meeting held on MONDAY, 7th DECEMBER, 2009, at the Villages Hall, Bishampton.

Members and Officers present: Mr D Cheetham (Chairman) Mr C Tucker (Vice Chairman), Mr M Argyle, Mr E Beever, Mr G Day, Mr R Hodgkins, Mr D Baldwin, Mr J Mills, Mrs L Rimell and Mrs C Morris (Clerk).

In attendance: Mrs E Tucker, Worcestershire County Councillor and Wychavon District Councillor.

The meeting opened at 7.33pm.

It was adjourned to hear from Mr McGinity and Mrs Argyle, who were concerned about the future of the village shop and post office. Mr McGinity presented some information to the council (re: the Plunkett Foundation which financially supports community shop schemes) and both remained to hear the council's debate.

The meeting reopened at

ADMIN:

- 1. To receive apologies and to approve the reason for absence. None
- 2. To record: a) Declarations of Interest (Personal & Prejudicial) and b) Any changes to be notified to the Register of Interest and Gifts & Hospitability.

 Cllr Tucker recorded his involvement with Throckmorton Village Charity. Cllr Day declared an interest in the Nutkins Dray planning application as a friend of the applicant and Cllr Rimell declared an interest in her own planning application, which had already been dealt with. Cllr Mills declared his involvement with Item 8.
- To approve the minutes of the Parish Council Meeting held on November 2nd 2009.

The minutes were signed by the chairman as a true record of proceedings.

4. To review the council's obligations under the Freedom of Information Act. Deferred.

NEW ITEMS:

5. To consider the future of the village shop and post office and the role of the parish council in support it.

The council unanimously agreed it wanted to support the presence of a shop and post office in the village. Members had ideas for its development but first, it was agreed that it was necessary to gather some further facts before the issue could be developed. It was agreed that a) the chairman should approach the landlord of the building to see what options may be open to the council; b) the clerk should find out from CALC the council's power to buy/lease a building; and c) the chairman should approach the vicar about the plans for the church to take over Flyford stores to see if there would be any option for shared management etc.

It was agreed that (with no meeting set for January), when further news was gathered, the council would call an extra meeting – or a working party would meet (comprising Cllr

Cheetham, Cllr Hodgkins, Cllr Mills and Mr McGinity and Mrs Argyle) to consider further steps.

Cllr Hodgkins reported that he worked at the community shop in Feckenham and that the chairman would be pleased to talk to anyone considering a similar scheme. It was noted for future talks.

6. To consider issues regarding the Lenches wind turbine scheme.

It was reported that a planning application was now expected at the end of January.

7. Christmas in the parish: Christmas tree; request to fund Mulled Wine.

The council thanked the Day family for supplying the village Christmas tree again. Members also agreed to fund the mulled wine refreshments for the Christmas Eve carol singing evening up to £30.

8. To consider complaints about parking on pavements in Bishampton.

An official complaint was made to the council regarding parking on the pavements near the hairdresser's. Cllr Mills, who owns the properties there has spoken to the police about the issue and agreed to speak to clients and tenants to ask them to try to avoid obstructing the pavement for pedestrians.

The clerk reported that there had also been a complaint made about the rubbish collectors bins on the pavements after emptying them. Wychavon was notified and the situation seemed to have improved.

9. To consider any issues regarding the adoption of the Bishampton telephone kiosk.

The clerk has applied for the adoption and has organised an electricity supplier. The handover will mean that the telephony is removed and we are left with an empty kiosk with a light in. It was agreed that the kiosk should be used as an information centre with a map listing village properties along with other useful information. Cllr Tucker agreed to investigate costs to have a sign made.

10. To consider a £500 grant request for Bishampton Villages Hall.

The village hall committee asked for a £500 grant for this year, rather than the usual £1,000 in order to replace fire extinguishers and this grant was approved by the council. The council also agreed to pay for one professional cut of the hedges per year as part of the PC mowing contract.

Clerk to inform the BATVHT committee.

Action Clerk

It was noted that the village hall had a fire inspection and it was found that the fire hydrant over the road was overgrown and not useable. The lengthsman cleared all of the village hydrants and the highways officer confirmed that it costs could be recouped under the lengthsman scheme.

11. To consider the future of the parish Newssheet and parish council financial support.

The council regretted that the new plans for Newssheet would lose the community involvement in its production and members were concerned that the new-look Newssheet would be more of a commercial enterprise. Therefore, members agreed they could not offer financial support.

REGULAR ITEMS:

12. Finance

12.1. To note any receipts and to approve invoices for payment.

The following invoices were approved for payment: Mr N Winter Lengthsman £375.55
GBD (Evesham) Ltd Mowing £492.29
BATVHT Grant £500.00
Pershore H School Grant £400

Mr R Hodgkins (see item 15) $\frac{£49.20}{£1,817.04}$

12.2. To approve the statement of cash reconciliation for November 2009.

The reconciliation showed that in the current account in November, there had been no income and spending of £732.27, leaving its total at the end of the month at £10,560.36. In the savings account, interest had been accrued of £1.43, bringing its total to £33,732.48. All cheques had been cleared so at the end of November, the council's total cash assets stood at £44,292.84.

12.3. To approve claims for expenses/overtime.

The clerk's expenses of £13.00 were approved (£4.68 stamps and £8.32 mileage).

12.4. To consider the parish council budget for the next financial year and to set the precept for 2010/11.

The council considered the clerk's budget report and spending predictions for the rest of this year and for the year ahead and agreed to keep the precept at the same level - £17,500.

Action Clerk

13. Planning

13.1. Council's response to planning applications between meetings.

The following plans came to the council between meetings and were dealt with by delegated powers:

W/09/02587/PP **Field Farm House**, Hill Furze Road, Bishampton. Application for existing building to be used as an office containing two floors.

No objection in general except for some concern expressed at further development of the small site.

W09/02572/PP **3 Moat Farm Lane**, Bishampton. Two-storey extension to front elevation to create disabled facilities.

No objections, only some concern about the double-pitch front elevation design of the building.

W/09/02536/CU Manor House, **3 Dorrells Orchard**, Bishampton. Change of use from agricultural land to garden.

No objection apart from some concern about future development of the site.

13.2. Current planning applications.

Councillors considered the following plans:

(Cllr Day declared his interest and this item was dealt with at the end of the meeting after he left)

W/09/02666/PN – **Nutkins Drey**, Broad Lane, Bishampton. New detached dwelling and garage.

The council was not happy with the water harvesting system and its ability to cope with the increased flood risk of developing the site.

W/09/02652/PN – **Pershore Airfield**, Throckmorton. 90m temporary meteorological mast for sole use of calibrating and developing wind farm measuring equipment. No objections.

W/09/02695/PP – 1 **Babylon Lane**, Bishampton. Proposed side extension, front porch and internal alterations.

No objections.

13.3. Reports on planning decisions.

14. Play Areas : To consider any matters relating to the parish play areas/village hall grounds.

It was agreed that the council would ask Rospa to carry out safety checks again in the new year.

Action Clerk

Cllr Baldwin agreed to look at some damaged safety mats, reported by the lengthsman, and see what needed replacing.

Action Cllr Baldwin

15. Footpaths and Conservation Area: To consider rights of way issues and funding some improvements for the conservation area.

It was agreed to fund the cost of a fence along one side of the conservation area to stop people taking short cuts with their dogs and encourage proper use of its paths and gates.

It was also agreed to pay for repairs to Cllr Hodgkins's chainsaw which was broken while work was carried out on site.

The footpath warden had asked for funds in the budget to carry out work in the coming year:

- a) A £300 contribution towards the cost of a kissing gate in Badgers Lane It was agreed to leave the money in budget in case it was needed but that other, less costly ways of dealing with the problem (like installing a stile instead) would be investigated first.
- b) That the council could continue paying for regular mowing of the paths in order to ensure regular attention. Approx £350

Agreed

- c) To contribute £500 towards replacing stiles and gates during the coming year. Agreed
- d) A £50 budget for meeting costs for path volunteer recruitment meetings.

This was agreed, although the clerk was asked to point out to Mr Kingston that the village hall was free to community groups without income.

16. To consider any parish Lengthsman issues/jobs.

The clerk reported lengthsman work for the month.

For highways:

Checked throck (\$ Trent) ditch and cut back undergrowth

checked ditched and culverts in Broad Lane/Jubilee Walk

dug fire hydrant and checked ditches and culverts in Broad Lane

attempted to clean graffiti off village sign (no can do!!)

checked gullies and located hydrants in Bishampton

checked ditches and gullies and cleared tree from road in throck/pinvin road.

for the PC:

assessed damage to nature reserve fence met with PC to discuss action at nature reserve carried out play area safety checks completed repairs to the play area fence.

It was noted that a ditch in Throckmorton needed attention. Clerk to report.

Action Clerk

17. To consider any newsletter/website issues. None.

UPDATES:

18. To consider any matters regarding ongoing issues:

- The wind turbine plans for the Lenches. None
- Housing: airfield scheme/ affordable housing / RSS&JCS regional housing blueprint None
- **Community First Responder Scheme.** Cllr Baldwin reported on the latest administration issues which have meant that the service is reduced at present.
- Flooding spending of grant/plans for improvements. A report from Mr Martyn Cross at Wychavon brought councillors up to date on the developments of work in the village. The council agreed to write and thank Mr Cross. Action Clerk

REPORTS/CORRESPONDENCE:

- 19. PACT news. None
- 20. CALC/ training matters.

January 4th Throckmorton Parish Room 7 for 7.30pm. Training session.

21. County and district councillor report.

Cllr Liz Tucker reported on budget concerns of the district and county councils.

- 22. To receive reports from councillors and items for future agendas. None
- 23. To consider any further items of correspondence.

W Factor posters

Rospa – notes for the play area safety inspections

Request for a grant from Macmillan cancer Worcestershire.(£100). NB: Would you like to make a grant policy? Next agenda.

Pershore Transport Questionnaire results. Thanks to all who helped distribute it. (results sheet in the circulation envelope).

Worcestershire Waste Core Strategy consultation – setting out the ground rules for waste disposal facilities in the county until 2027. A questionnaire to fill in by Feb 4th. View it all online: www.worcestershire.gov.uk/wcs

Christmas refuse and recycling dates: posters.

The South Worcestershire Joint Core Strategy (the group of local district councils looking at where to put all the new houses the Government says we must build) is preparing a plan and is holding meetings to consult local people on where the homes should go. (none are specifically planned for our parish, as yet)

They are planning a meeting looking at housing in this area in Drakes Broughton on Jan 21st (2.30-7) and another looking at the Inkberrow/Flyford Flavell area on March 20th. There will be a briefing event for PCs before these consultations begin and you are invited to attend - Weds December 9th, Civic Centre, Pershore, 6-7pm. Please confirm to Elaine.godwin@wychavon.gov.uk if you want to go asap.

Pershore High School info: Pershore High school has had International School Award status for the fourth time, as a result of its excellent practice in curriculum based international work. It has been recommended for the Link2Learn Awards to celebrate excellence and innovation in international school partnerships.

Joe Connolly of Connoly's Red Mills (UK) Ltd has copied a letter to us regarding clearance of ditches ordered by WDC at Rotherdale Farm, Throckmorton: tenancy has changed from Mr R Burt to new tenant Mr Richard Beldam.

Adult education (circulated by email)

Circulation: Pershore Transport Questionaire results/ Pershore High newsletter/ Worcestershire Warden newsletter/ Children and young people strategic partnership info/ Community First Newsline/ Caring News/ Countryside Voice

24. To affirm the dates of the next meeting of the Parish Council.

The next meeting of the parish council was affirmed as Monday, February 1st 2010.

The meeting closed at 9.30pm		
Chairman	Date	
Clerk to the Council Mrs C. Morris		